

1949

4/19

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
BUDGET (FACULTY BUDGET)
DIRECTOR

Academic Personnel
Finance
Administration

Budget presented by the Director for the fiscal year 1949-50,
and suggested the Faculty study it and that the next year the
Standing Committee help the Director in preparing the budget.

1949

4/19

TAXATION (INCOME TAX)

Government Relations

/ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

The Director reported tax in the case of permanent members was a worrisome question. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees had suggested a test case. Alexander submitted his case for a test.

1949

4/19

~~PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION~~

Academic Personnel

EMIGRES

GENERAL

Government Relations

Director reported on new amendments to the Federal Code affecting the approval of the Institute as an institution for immigrant students. Certification from the Institute was required by the Attorney General, and he hoped approval would be given, but he intended to appeal the matter if it were not.

Faculty Minutes, 4/19/49

1949

4/19

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

TRUSTEES

Corporation

COMMITTEES (LIAISON)

Academic Personnel

The Director reported an Academic Committee of the Trustees was to be appointed. He hoped it would act as a link between the Faculty and the Trustees, probably a visiting committee.

1949

4/20

POLICIES

Administration

MEMBERS (PROFESSORS EMERITI)

Academic Personnel

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Biographical

LINFORTH

Oppenheimer memorandum to faculty:

Cherniss wrote tentatively to Professor Linforth retired from Department of Greek U. C. inquiring whether he wished to come here as a member, with the implication we could make a grant-in-aid available. While everyone would welcome Linforth, some members expressed concern on policy of offering stipends for academic people who are retired.

Oppenheimer proposed to write Linforth stating as a decision of policy for the time being we should reserve stipend funds for younger people. We would welcome professors emeriti when they their work seems suitable for the Institute

and in the measure in which we ~~xxxxxxxxxx~~ could receive them: in some cases even meeting expenses of transportation but that we could not give them grants-in-aid.

Oppenheimer concluded that since this was an enunciation of policy he wanted the faculty's concurrence or disagreement or statement that a meeting was necessary.

Stewart: agreed with principle but would apply it to the next case to save embarrassment. What about Radin? Does welcoming mean provide office space and secretarial assistance ~~xx~~ in membership in some group--he thinks so. Holds that stipends should go to ~~xxxxxxxxx~~ an increasing number of younger men. Meritt expressed approval on his and Cherniss' part. Panofsky (despite Frankl) "wholeheartedly" concurred with the policy.

Weyl agreed but pointed out Siegel was afraid the first application of the polby would be against Niels Bohr.

Veblen thought that he concurred and asked if Oppenheimer had talked with Meritt about his experience with Capps.

1949

9/26

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Biographical

Memorandum to files October 3, 1949 noted faculty meeting September 26, 1949. No minutes taken. A decision was reached regarding government contracts embodied in attached letter (September 26, 1949). Staff holidays decided upon.

1949

10/3

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

DIRECTOR

Administration

GENERAL

Government Relations

RESEARCH

Academic Procedures

The Minutes disappear and become the briefest of memoranda. In this memorandum it is stated that the: "Decision with reference to contracts embodied in attached letter." This is hardly true, and certainly not adequate. See letter September 26, 1949 attached hereto.

"September 26, 1949

"Dear Mr. Chadwell:

(This letter has already been copied and is in the file.)

From Oppenheimer to Chadwell regarding contracts with government.

Faculty Minutes, 10/3/49 p. 211, letter is on page 212.

1949

10/3

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

Academic Organization

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

POLICIES

Administration

1949

The file contains minutes from October, 1949, to March 20, 1951. The policy of handling applications to the School was discussed by Earle who said he divided them into three categories:

- (1) those which should be rejected for obvious reasons--those requesting assistance for the completion of work for the Ph. D. degree or those who clearly should enroll in graduate or undergraduate programs elsewhere. Sometimes these applications are referred to Princeton University or some other appropriate institution.
- (2) Those which have considerable intrinsic merit but which are not suitable for Institute sponsorship or support. Sometimes referred to Guggenheim Foundation or similar organizations.
- (3) Those which may be of interest, however peripheral, to a professor or professors of the School of Historical Studies. These are discussed by Earle, Executive Officer, with the interested professor or professors before any decision is made. No application such application will be rejected without full consultation of the Executive Office with other members of the

School. (4) Those which require action by the entire School on the recommendation of one or more professors. In such cases it was suggested by the Director and others that in except in rare instances final decision should be reserved until March of each academic year so that the applications might be weighed as to their respective merits.

It was generally agreed as a matter of policy that all applications are rejected which do not contemplate residence at the Institute. Also agreed, as a general rule, that the granting of fellowships will be recommended only for members who plan to work in the general field of interest of one or more of the permanent staff of the School, provided that an application from any outstanding scholar, no matter what the field of interest, will be referred not only to the School but to the office of the Director.

It was also agreed at the suggestion of Stewart that a list of declinations be submitted to the Faculty of the School from time to time.

It was generally agreed against appointing any permanent professor in literary criticism, but also that members might be accepted after due consideration if they fit well into the program of the Institute or of the University.

Earle reported on his plan ~~to study~~ for a study of France to begin in 1950, and announced invitations to three men: Bury, Thomson of Cambridge, and Gottman of Paris. General agreement was given to his program and his intention to invite two or three other French scholars.

1949
1950

10/18
3/11

GENERAL (Kermit Roosevelt for
Saturday Evening Post;
Miller for Colliers)

Public Relations

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Biographical

Probably as a result of the article in Time, November 8, 1948,
(see Vertical File, Public Relations) the Institute became
gun-shy on publicity.

Kermit Roosevelt first asked Oppenheimer for an appointment
April 19, 1949, and cited a couple of Saturday Evening Post
articles he had done on Mr. Conant. Mrs. Leary informed him
that it was a bad time to do an article, and that Oppenheimer
was too busy to see him. He said that the Saturday Evening
Post would go ahead anyway--that he has submitted an outline
to them last spring and they wanted it completed. (October 7, 1949).
On October 10, 1949, he submitted an outline of the article
to Oppenheimer, saying that the Post was going to publish an

article anyway, and Oppenheimer might as well relent and see him. He found the Life article good. He said it is not his intention to devote himself almost exclusively to Oppenheimer, but to the Institute.

Oppenheimer consulted first with Veblen, sending the correspondence and the outline (see file) to Veblen who evidently suggested a Faculty meeting. Thereafter, Mrs. Cary, October 18, 1949, wrote to Roosevelt saying that Oppenheimer had taken the matter up with the Faculty. "The unanimous opinion of the Faculty was that they hoped the article would not be published...because they feel the Institute has had too much publicity recently. I know that they very much hope that the article will not come out, either now or in the near future."/

"Some of the Faculty members feel that even in the interests of accuracy, the Institute should not intervene in any way, should you continue with it; whereas others are

sufficiently concerned about the article to hold the contrary view. Since this is the case, I do not see how the Director could help you.

Mrs. Leary offered to contact ~~the~~ Saturday Evening Post directly and explain the situation, but received no answer from Roosevelt.

Merle Miller asked for an interview with Oppenheimer after spending several days in Princeton for Colliers prior to March 11, 1950. Miller said he had never had the kind of experience he had in Princeton last week - "except in prewar Germany." He told Oppenheimer Mrs. Leary had told him that though Oppenheimer was out of town at the time, she was sure that when you returned you would not only refuse to see me, but that you would look with disfavor on any story on the Institute by any writer. Miller saying that he could go ahead with the story anyway could not imagine that Oppenheimer would refuse to see him. He talked with several people at the University and a couple of members of the Institute staff.

He also talked with Edgar Bamberger in Newark. Though the members of the Institute did not want any publicity on their work or on the Institute, they both agreed that "in a democratic society the kind of article I had in mind was perfectly legitimate and might even be important."

After Oppenheimer's return Mrs. Leary called him again and reiterated the fact that Oppenheimer would not see him. She also announced that an appointment with Dr. Aydelotte had been cancelled.

Miller said that if the Institute and its personnel had not had any publicity in the past, he could well understand the attitude, but that he construed it now in favor of the Time-Life group. Mrs. Leary reported to Dr. Oppenheimer that she had not been able to find any Faculty person who had talked with Miller.

On March 21, 1950, Oppenheimer wrote a letter, telling him that a distinguished writer some months ago had asked

help in writing a piece about the Institute; but Oppenheimer had taken his request to the "faculty which" in many matters acts as a sort of custodial body. They expressed the very strong opinion that it would be undesirable to have anything written about the Institute at that time, and asked me to do what I could to discourage the writing of the article, and urged me under no circumstances to collaborate. This seemed to me an obligation that I ought to take quite seriously, irrespective of my own views as to the general virtue of some form of public accountability, even on the part of a quite private institution...under the circumstances, I would find it incompatible with my obligation to my colleagues to offer you cooperation in the writing of an article whose very existence they would deplore."

D, ~~Exking~~ Publicity - Requests for articles

1950-1951

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

POLICIES

Administration

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Biographical

The following meetings were held with no minutes or memoranda in the faculty files: September 18, 1950, October 3, 1950, December 13, 1950, February 5, 1951, May 18, 1951. Business was transacted at some of these meetings and decisions taken. Some were luncheons. Thus on December 13, 1950, at a special faculty luncheon there was consideration of Kantorowicz' appointment. On April 16, 1951, appointments of members Shoe, Segal and Kaufman were approved and Hassler Whitney's appointment was discussed. On May 18, 1951 Whitney's appointment was approved.

This refers to copy files-

D, Faculty Minutes, 1948-1951

1950

2/7

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

LIBRARY

Facilities

GENERAL

Academic Personnel

KENNAN, GEORGE

Biographical

The Director reported to the Faculty School of Historical Studies of his thinking for the library which he intended to take up with the full Faculty, referring to the report of the Faculty committee. He proposed to expand the library in Fuld Hall, and asked the Trustees for new construction to supply necessary office space.

Director proposed it be regular policy to continue professors emeriti so long as they remain active in their studies with the right to have an assistant as before their retirement though not with the "conversion right" to choose a member instead of such an assistant. There was general agreement that this should be the policy, but that if it became too costly it should be reviewed.

The Director reported that he has told Kenman that financial support for him will be provided if he should decide to come to the Institute next year.

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

ASSISTANTS

STAMIREs (STAMIREs)

Biographical

Meritt recommended and the School endorsed Stamires' appointment to membership for a third year. He has been busy compiling a new and up-to-date list of all Athenian citizens with a brief account of their lives; work complementing and supplementing the work of the Berlin Academy on the subject. Stamires is on leave of absence from the Department of Antiquities, a part of the Archaeological Service of the Ministry of Education in Athens. Stipend approved, third year approved, \$3,000 a year.

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

GÖDEL, KURT

Biographical

The School of Mathematics had considered a professorship for Gödel, but had not made a decision.

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS (COMMITTEE ON
PHYSICS)

Academic Organization

The Director reported two five-year appointments in physics for Faculty approval: Placzek with a grant-in-aid of \$9,000 a year, and Yang with a grant-in-aid of ~~\$5500~~ \$5500 a year. The Director reported the physics group needed the stability of some longer-term members, and that he hoped to secure the right person for a full professorship. Approved.

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

ASSISTANTS

Director recommended that assistants for professors emeriti be approved if requested (approved automatically if requested) as long as an emeritus professor continued his work. Approved.

Faculty Minutes, 2/13/50

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

LIBRARY

Facilities

The library needed room for expansion . The Faculty agreed the utilization of the offices on the second floor would be the appropriate method. (p. 215) The Director also mentioned a plan for two additional office buildings similar to the two behind Fuld Hall. Faculty concurred.

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

VINER, J.

Biographical

Viner has been a member on a year-to-year basis (though the Minutes fail to disclose it). ~~NEWKAMSKIX~~ The new Schools wish to take formal action to make him a permanent member, was reported. Stewart and Earle spoke highly of Viner's intellectual eminence. No stipend--paid by Princeton University entirely. Approved.

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

RIEFLER W. W.

Biographical

The Director brought up the question of Riefler's leave of absence, and stated he would write to him to inquire whether his status should not now be changed.

1950

2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

WEITZMANN, KURT

Biographical

Permanent professorship at the University of Vienna had been offered Weitzmann. He now holds joint appointment with Princeton University and the Institute. Princeton is prepared to offer him a full professorship.

The School recommended that he remain as a permanent member under the present joint arrangement with the Institute. The Institute would contribute a minimum of \$1000 a year to Weitzmann's salary when Princeton completes its parallel arrangements. To be budgetted from the School's grants-in-aid.

1949 1950

4/20
4/21

TRUSTEES
(Terms)
(Age)
(Faculty)

Corporation

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

By this meeting 6 trustees were being held over beyond terms (expired 1949 & 1950). Decided to continue until By-Laws were revised. Question of successive terms without break, and age limit, Maass took position Board self-perpetuating. Oppenheimer agreed, but said "concern for control could well be irrelevant to the proposed study since...a good measure of cooperation was the essential for wise policy." Oppenheimer suggested it might be helpful if faculty was rotated as members ex-officiis of Trustees. Maass held that it was Trustees' decision as to manner in which faculty should be ^{possibly 9000} represented, but found a rotative system of rep. In note Aydelotte represented as recording his experience with WWS and WWR resignations. He felt short periods of faculty rep. would be useless, and suggested two groups: (1) faculty representatives on Board, and (2) Trustee visitors to faculty meetings.

D, Notices Drafts & Minutes

1950

4/21

TRUSTEES

Corporation

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

LEWIS, WILMARTH

Biographical

See the meeting minutes for the discussion on rotation of membership on the Board of Trustees, retirement age for the trustees, and faculty membership on the trustees.

Minutes Annual Meeting of the Members of the Corporation, 4/21/50

1950

10/3

GENERAL (PUBLICITY)

Public Relations

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

Discussion of article by Miss Gertrude Samuels, New York Times Sunday magazine.

Faculty discussion on letter against further Institute publicity; decision later changed in this case.

1950

11/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

Academic Organization

KANTOROWICZ

Biographical

WOODWARD

EARLE

The School of Historical Studies which had had only two new appointments since the beginning: Cherniss and Thompson, had lost three professors: Riefler, Warren, and Stewart. The Director outlined the discussions which he had had with the School of Historical Studies for replacements, and the fields of philosophy, anthropology, belles letters in the broad sense of the history of literature, had been considered, with the conclusion that no suitable candidate was known in these fields. Two nominees: Kantorowicz and Woodward, are in the field of history proper. Their appointments would not preclude the Institute from inviting a younger man to its staff in the near future. Vote was not asked for at this meeting; next meeting.

"The Director also solicited from the Faculty as a whole any proposals it might have for the School." (Undoubtedly, the School of Mathematics would have many fine suggestions for the School of Historical Studies). Earle commented on Woodward's present position as leading British political Historian; his official editing of British diplomatic documents of the last fifty years; current and still unpublished work on the diplomatic minutes of the British Cabinet. Woodward would retire in five years under the present system. By that time some of the younger men the School was considering would be ready for professorial appointment. The chief question was whether Woodward would accept a position which would preclude his present writing assignments under the auspices of the British Government.

Panofsky supported the nomination of Kantorowicz.

Faculty Minutes, 11/14/50

1950

11/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

APPLIED MATHEMATICS

Academic Activities

BIGELOW, J. H.

Biographical

GOLDSTEIN, H. H.

The Director asked the Faculty to vote on permanent memberships for Bigelow and Goldstein of the E. C. P. The project, though an exception in the Institute, could not be run with transient members; annual cost to be \$8500 each, at present covered by Government contracts. "Should the Project be discontinued, however, the Institute would have definite commitments in both appointments. Von Neumann briefly reviewed the careers and present work of both nominees. In general discussion both men were highly recommended by members of the Faculty. Approved by unanimous vote.
Faculty Minutes, 11/14/50

1950

11/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

EINSTEIN

Biographical

VEBLEN

~~XXX~~ PAIS

MONTGOMERY, DEANE

SELBERG, ATLEY

LERAY, JEAN

The Director reported with the retirement of Veblen and Einstein, there would be four vacancies in the School of Mathematics' Faculty, 1951-1952. The School recommended the appointment as Professor of Montgomery, Pais and Selberg, effective July 1, 1951. School recommended a replacement of a senior member to the mathematical faculty appointment of Professor Jean Leray of the Collège de France, but

preliminary discussions had brought out that Leray would not now consider a permanent appointment. Therefore a three-year appointment was recommended, for Leray, subject to Trustee approval of the grant-in-aid since this would be on the professorial level and a special budgetary item.

Faculty Minutes, 11/14/50

1950

11/14
11/20

~~XXXX~~ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES
SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

PAIS
SELBERG
MONTGOMERY
WOODWARD
KANTOROWICZ

Biographical

~~XXXX~~ Pais, Selberg and Montgomery invited to meeting though their nominations as professors were presented at it. Approved at meeting. But nomination of Woodward and Kantorowicz presented by School of Historical Studies deferred to next meeting. (3 S. M. men were permanent members and known to I. A. S. reason) But the difference in treatment was noted and it was decided that hereafter nominations would be acted upon not when first proposed but at next meeting. The meeting of the 14th had approved appointment of Bigelow and Goldstein as permanent members. Action repeated November 20, 1950.
Faculty Minutes, p. 216

1950

11/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

GENERAL

Academic Procedures

The Director suggested shortening the mid-term recess from seven weeks to three weeks, allowing two weeks later opening and two weeks earlier closing. Faculty approved the new calendar.

Faculty Minutes, 11/14/50

1950

11/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
BENEFITS (SOCIAL SECURITY LAW)

Academic Personnel

The law newly amended included educational institutions, provided the administrative authorities of the institution agree and that a two-thirds majority of the employees desire to be covered. Director stressed the benefits, particularly for casual and older employees. The Trustees had approved the taking of an employee vote, and it also assumed the total tax of three per cent, including the employee's share. The Faculty was in general agreement about the benefits of such coverage.

1950

11/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Academic Personnel
Relations WOA I

Director reported that Professor Oates suggested systematic joint consultation on policy matters. Trustees had approved ~~an inter-institutional committee~~ with the proviso that separateness be maintained. The Institute could have three faculty members meet three faculty members of the University for discussion and information only.

The Faculty voted that the Director should suggest the formation of such a committee on inter-institutional policy to President Dodds and determine on the composition of the committee with Dodds.

1950

11/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

LIBRARY

Facilities

Director appointed the present Library Committee to continue: Cherniss, Thompson and Weyl. (Morse to serve in Weyl's absence). (Cherniss was Chairman).

Standing Committee would be comprised of the Executive Officer of each School and the Director: Cherniss, Morse and Oppenheimer at present.

Faculty Minutes, 11/14/50

1950

11/20

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Relations WOA1

The Director had discussed the Inter-institutional Policy Committee with President Dodds. The composition of the Committee was announced, and the first meeting of February, 1951, was reported. Names ? not there. (Note that in the first discussion of such Liaison, the Faculty had to call Oppenheimer's attention to the necessity of his dealing at the presidential level first on such a matter, and not with the professor of classics as the top).

Faculty Minutes, 11/20/50

1950

11/20

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

NEUGEBAUER, OTTO

Biographical

SCHMIDT, OLAF

Schmidt appointed member grant-in-aid of \$2500. Suggested by Neugebauer whose assistant he previously was, who will be here the same term.

Faculty Minutes, 11/20/50

1950

11/20

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

Academic Organization

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

KANTOROWICZ

Biographical

WOODWARD, E. H.

The nominations of Kantorowicz and Woodward were presented for Faculty vote. Morse emphasized that he hoped the School would encourage the selection of younger men for permanent membership. Siegel refrained from voting. Both were nominated by the Faculty; Woodward unanimously, Kantorowicz not.

Faculty Minutes, 11/20/50

1950

11/20

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

DIRECTOR

Administration

POLICIES

The Faculty decided that in the future the election of permanent members would follow the same procedure as that of Faculty members; that is, proposal at one meeting, formal action subsequently. Therefore, they went through the procedure of voting these appointments, the appointments of Bigelow and Goldstein voted previously, November 14, 1950, without notice at the November 20 meeting.

Faculty Minutes, 11/20/50

1951

3/20
4/16

INSTITUTE HISTORY

Institute History

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

Here the Faculty Minutes are reduced to items without discussion; that of March 20 is called Memorandum to File, that of April 16 is called Aide Memoire, both unsigned, neither reflecting discussion. Bear action.

Buc

1951

3/20

MEMBERS

Academic Personnel

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

A three-year membership approved for Res Jost, as a Member of the School of Mathematics and Physics.

One-year renewal for Dr. C. L. Pekeris for the School of Mathematics.

Five-year membership recommended and approved for George Kennan.

Faculty Minutes, 3/20/51

1951

4/12

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

EARLE, E. M.

Biographical

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Earle expresses himself after a conversation with Oppenheimer and after further thought, and is thinking it would be best if there were no faculty members on the Board.

1951

4/16

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

Lucky Shoe, member, 1951-52 without stipend.

Dr. Irvin Segal, grant -in-aid \$3,000 to supplement his Guggenheim Fellowship.

Bruria Kaufman, Assistant to Professor Einstein, salary \$3,200 a year.

Offer of professorship to Dr. Hassler Whitney presented and discussed. Not acted upon, but not opposed.

Faculty Minutes, 4/16/51

1951

5/4

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION	Academic Personnel
TRUSTEES (HONORARY)	Corporation
DIRECTOR	Administration

The issue of the By-Laws with all amendments to May 20, 1949 was amended as follows:

An amendment of Section I, Article 3 providing in addition to the note that the two founders should be honorary members, where honorary trustees may be elected at the annual meeting of the Corporation, they may meet with the Board and participate in deliberations but shall not vote. They may be appointed to serve on committees of the Board but shall not vote.

(2) The elimination of Section V of Article 3 which provided that members of the faculty, if members of the Corporation, shall be eligible for election as ~~xxx~~ trustees.

(3) An amendment to Section I, Article 6 reading as follows: "The Trustees shall appoint a Director of the Institute

who shall be responsible under the supervision of the Trustees or the Executive Committee for the administration and academic work of the Institute in accordance with its purposes as declared in the Charter of the Corporation. The Director shall be a member ex-officio of the Corporation and of all committees of the Trustees. He shall be responsible for communicating to the Trustees views of the faculty on all matters affecting the Institute. He shall organize the faculty of the Institute, and determine, in consultation with the faculty, the admission of members and the employment of staff, and exercise general supervision over the Institute in respect to its academic phases. He shall have authority, with the approval of the faculty, and with the approval of the Board or the Executive Committee, to make appointments to the faculty for indefinite terms or for limited periods. It shall be the duty of the Director to ascertain from the Treasurer the amount of income which will be available during the next academic year and to receive from each School its recommendations as to its needs and plans for the coming year. These recommendations shall be considered and amended as may be deemed advisable by the Director and the

Chairman of the Board and then submitted to the Budget Committee with power to amend. In case of a vacancy in the Directorship a special committee shall be created to consider the appointment of a successor. No action shall be taken for the election of a successor until after the report of such Committee."

(Removes the Director as a member of the Corporation and a trustee. Makes him sole channel between the faculty and the Trustees. Shall consult with the faculty in determining the admission of members and the employment of staff, and presumably also in exercising general supervision over academic phases. Shall have authority with the approval of the faculty and of the Board or Executive Committee to make appointments to the faculty for indefinite terms or for limited periods. Relieved from making an annual report.)

1951

5/4

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Biographical

WHITNEY

The School of Mathematics had held one ~~meeting~~ meeting to consider appointing Whitney to a professorship at the Institute. Whitney, a creative and exciting figure, and the School wished to make the offer even if Whitney does not come. Second meeting to approve the offer had not been held as yet, and, therefore, Oppenheimer asked the Board's permission to make the appointment subject to the vote of the Faculty; salary \$18,000. The Board granted the conditional approval.

1951

5/18

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
POLICIES

Academic Personnel
Administration

WHITNEY, HASSLER

Biographical

Whitney appointed professor. The memoire reflects that approval for the appointment was given by the President of the Corporation and the Chairman of the Board of the Institute in accordance with the authority given them at the annual meeting of the Corporation and Board of Trustees in Princeton on May 4, 1951. (Where was the Executive Committee?)

1951

10/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

POLICIES

Administration

With the Minutes of October 5, 1951, the Faculty members started signing the Minutes as Acting Secretary for the Faculty. This was after Mrs. Leary's departure.

Faculty Minutes, 10/5/51

1951

10/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (OFFICE SPACE)

Facilities

Accommodations are crowded. Three possible solutions were considered:

- (1) To invite fewer members.
- (2) To erect an additional building
- (3) To reconsider the current practice of allowing professors emeriti to retain their offices.

No action taken. "None of these solutions was regarded as happy."

Faculty Minutes, 10/5/51

1951

10/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

INCOME TAX (TAXATION)

Government Relations

Director announced new ruling received by another foundation indicating that stipends for members are taxable. In communication to the Institute the Commissioner of Internal Revenue ruled that a grant is a gift and so tax exempt if it accrues to the benefit of an individual, but not if it benefits society. "In accordance with this ruling the majority of the Institute's grants would be subject to tax and, in fact, two members of the Institute recently departing for Europe were required to effect Income Tax clearance in conformity with the ruling.

"It was the opinion of the Director, supported by the Faculty, that no sharp line of distinction can be drawn in the Institute's program between education and research; hence, it was hoped that the Trustees would contest the Commissioner's ruling."

Faculty Minutes, 10/5/51

1951

10/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

FOREIGN PERSONNEL

Government Relations

EMIGRES

Academic Personnel

The Director announced negotiations under the new Internal Security Act resulted in the exclusion of three prospective members and the admission of others on uncertain status, and had created not a little ill-feeling among foreign scholars against the United States. "Pending legislative changes, the Director raised the possibility of asking the State Department to carry out security investigations of foreign scholars who are under consideration for membership in the Institute before they are formally invited. The Director admitted that such procedure would be unfortunate, and the concensus of opinion of the meeting was also opposed."

Faculty Minutes, 10/5/51

1951

10/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

LIBRARY (ROSENWALD COLLECTION)

Facilities

Received 1800 items history of science.

Faculty Minutes, 10/5/51

1951

10/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION .	Academic Personnel
SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES	Academic Organization
FORD	Foundations
GIFTS (INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION)	Finance

Ford Foundation fund for the maintenance of studies of the history of the United States Foreign Policy; from the International Business Machines Corporation \$20,000 a year for a period of five years, for the support of research in applied mathematics.

1951

10/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

LEARY, MRS. JOHN D.

Biographical

BARNETT, RUTH

Mrs. John D. Leary has resigned from the position of Aide to the General Manager and will be succeeded by Mrs. Ruth Barnett, October 6, 1951.

Faculty Minutes, 10/5/51

1951

11/13
~~10/13~~

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

DIRECTOR

Administration

PUBLICATIONS GENERAL

Publications

The Director invited comment on a typewritten statement which had been distributed to the Faculty entitled "The Institute for Advanced Study, Some Introductory Information." He explained the reasons for preparing the statement, and indicated the scope of its use as our publication. There was some general, favorable comment, and members of the Faculty agreed to submit editorial suggestions if they had any inwriting to the Director.

Faculty Minutes, 11/13/51

1951

11/13

~~PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION~~

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

BEURLING

Biographical

CHARNEY

The Director announced the Trustees authorized the approval of Professor A. K. A. Beurling as a member of the School of Mathematics for the academic year 1952-53 (no previous record of Faculty consideration).

The Faculty authorized for appointment to membership of Dr. Jule Charney for five years at \$9,000 a year, ~~XX~~ "from funds available."

1951

12/17

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

BEURLING, ARNE K. A.

Biographical

VAN HOVE, LEON C. P.

YANG

PLACZEK

Subject to Trustee concurrence, it was agreed to extend one year membership for Beurling to a five-year appointment effective 1952 at \$12,000 a year.

Voted to offer Van Home a three-year membership at \$5,500.

The Director commented on Yang and Placzek, and announced he would raise the question of placing their associations on a more permanent basis.

Faculty Minutes, 12/17/51

1951

12/17

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

FRANKL, PAUL

Biographical

The School of Historical Studies recommended , and Faculty agreed to extension of Frankl appointment for three years at stipend of \$4,000. "The extension was granted, despite Dr. Frankl's advanced age, to permit the completion of the important studies of mediaeval glass and Gothic architecture on which he is now engaged."

1951

12/17

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

Facilities

The Director reported that six offices are to be constructed in the basement of the main block of Fuld Hall to accommodate the administration.

The Director delegated Professors Cherniss and Morse to act as consultants to the General Manager during the Director's absence between December 19 and January 8.

Faculty Minutes, 12/17/41

1952

2/18

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

YANG

PLACZEK

GUERLAC

KOYRE

Permanent membership with Provision for retirement approved for Yang and Placzek.

Discussion of inviting to membership Guerlac and Koyré.

1952

3/11

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

TAXATION

Government Relations

The Trustees were taking action to maintain non-taxability of grants-in-aid for temporary members by soliciting rulings in appropriate cases, by bring cases to court, and by consulting with other agencies and branches of the Government concerned with sponsoring remedial legislation.

Faculty Minutes, 3/11/52

1952

3/11

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

The Director asked Veblen ^(invited by memo?) to discuss his views on the selection of Permanent Members and Professors at the Institute. It was agreed:

(1) That ad hoc committees could be useful, but there was no mandatory requirement to establish them.

(2) That permanent memberships were a serious enough commitment so that they should be acted on only after the presentation of a reasonably full documentation, should be available to the schools and the Faculty, and could be made available to the Trustees.

(3) That since, except in very special cases, memberships of five years ~~or~~ so did in fact involve some commitment, since they tend to detach a man from other academic institutions, these memberships too should be voted only on the basis of careful consideration and an adequate record.

(4) That in the case of members appointed for five years, or permanently, there be on record a statement of the intentions of the Institute with regard to making the appointment more permanent or converting it to a professorship.

Action taken?

1952

3/11

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

YANG

Biographical

PLACZEK

BEURLING

In the light of action taken on memberships, it was agreed to review the appointments of Yang, Placzek and Beurling, in the near future.

Faculty Minutes, 3/11/52

1952

4/2

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

PLAZCEK, GEORGE

Biographical

YANG, CHEN NING

The School of Mathematics recommended to strengthen the permanent staff in theoretical physics, that Placzek and Yang, now holding five-year memberships be made Permanent Members in the School of Mathematics at \$10,000 a year, and with their concurrence, a joint 5 per cent ~~contribution~~ - 5 per cent contribution to TIAA; that in the case of Yang, there be no commitment as to whether he will or will not at a later date be offered a Professorship: the issue to be determined by the progress in his own work and by the general situation of physics at the Institute, and by the relative merits of competing candidates for such a Professorship. But there is a substantial probability that, in the light of these

conditions, he will infact be offered a Faculty appointment at a later date. But in the case of Placzek, it is not at this time anticipated that he will be offered a Professorship at the Institute, and that he should be so notified.

The recommendation as applied to Yang was approved. As applied to Placzek it was amended to state:

"That, in the case of Placzek, it is not at this time anticipated that he will be offered a Professorship at the Institute; that this will not occur unless circumstances now unanticipated supervene." It was approved, Montgomery abstaining. (Presumably because of the liberalization of the recommendation of the School and its softening).

1952

4/2

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

BEURLING

Biographical

Beurling's appointment to be changed to five years,
but no longer. For any period he could obtain leave from
Uppsala.

Faculty Minutes, 4/2/52

1952

4/2

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

Academic Organization

FOX

Biographical

Fox was given membership for a third year, 1952-53.

Faculty Minutes, 4/2/52

1952

4/2

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

GENERAL

Finance

Director suggested three possible principle ways in which the Institute can make room for further growth:

- (1) By curtailing some present activity;
- (2) By securing funds for particular projects;
- (3) By securing additional general endowment.

(Why talk to the moon?)

1952
1953

9/29
4/2

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

PSYCHOLOGY

Academic Activities

Director noted formation of a panel on psychology for conference to explore possibilities of work in the general field of psychology: Bruner of Harvard, Neehl of Univ. of Minnesota, Miller of M. I. T., Tolman of Berkeley, Tolman of Los Angeles, Boring of Harvard, September 29, 1952.

April 2, he announced that the meeting had been held, and it considered about 50 names for possible year memberships in psychology. Considered were Edward G. Tolman, of California, Leo Postman of California, Hans Wallach of Swarthmore, S. Smith Stevens of Harvard, Jean Piaget of Switzerland. This was the advisory panel on psychology.

Faculty Minutes, 9/29/52 and 4/2/53

1952

9/29

BUDGET

Finance

DIRECTOR'S FUND (GENERAL)

Finance

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

Director announced:

- (1) 2 plans and bearing on corporate identity of I. A. S.
- (2) Bibliography
- (3) Collection of bound manuscripts of publishable material I. A. S. To exhibit in uniform binding corpus of work I. A. S.
- (4) Invite Isaiah Berlin of Oxford and Perry Miller, Horton G. White of Harvard on Director's Fund.

#3 later (11/26/52) reconsidered as to possibility.

Faculty Minutes, p. 246

1952

9/29

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

INSTITUTE HISTORY

Institute History

Faculty Minutes of September 29, 1952, and following,
are not digested for history notes, except in specific
instances.

Faculty Minutes

1952

11/10

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

BENEFITS

Trustees approved in principle to new optional equities retirement scheme of TIAA. (Get it).

Faculty Minutes, p. 247

1952

11/26

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

LIBRARY

Facilities

PUBLICATIONS (GENERAL)

Publications

It was decided to make an archive of manuscripts, including typescripts, so that the writings of members might be assembled in some readily accessible form.

Faculty Minutes, 11/26/52

1952

11/26

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

GOTTMAN, JEAN

Biographical

Gottman had inquired whether he might undertake a study of the State of Virginia as a member of the Institute without financial obligation of the Institute. "Misgivings were expressed lest the undertaking necessitate Mr. Gottmann's absence from Princeton for so large a proportion of the year as to conflict with the Institute's policy regarding residence of members." However, this great stumbling block was overcome in a consensus that the membership was approvable.

1953

1/13
2/13

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

WEDGWOOD, MISS VERONICA

Biographical

Five-year appointment for one term a year for Miss Wedgwood
at \$4,000 suggested and approved.

Faculty Minutes, 1/13/53 and 2/13/53

1953

2/13
4/2

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION	Academic Personnel
SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS	Academic Organization
METEOROLOGY	Academic Activities

At the first meeting noted above, von Neumann indicated his long-term interest in meteorology.

At the second meeting noted above, the Director announced that it would be further discussed, and must come up to the Board of Trustees. It may involve securing extra outside funds if the program is continued in full vigor.

Faculty Minutes, 2/13/53 and 4/2/53

1953

4/10

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

TRUSTEES (PRESIDENT)

The Corporation

BROWDER, FELIX

Biographical

Lewis Strauss' memorandum on Felix Browder.

Filed in Vertical File under P, Participation in Administration.

1953

9/28

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

DIRECTOR

Administration

SELBERG, ATLE

Biographical

Professor Selberg was elected new Faculty Secretary.
(First note of an election).

1953

10/14

✓PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

MEMBERSHIP

Academic Personnel

JOST, RES

Biographical

As director asked faculty to approve a five-year appointment, question asked why not permanent membership offered. Some explanation satisfied and they appointed five-year term.

See minutes 7/15/56 RD.
p. 3

1953

10/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

JOST, RES

Biographical

BEURLING

Five-year appointment was approved for Res Jost.

Baurling was recommended for a professorship by the School of Mathematics, but no action was taken in a general concern that the appointment might block the possibility of an appointment in the School of Historical Studies for some years. The Director made it clear that unless the endowment of the Institute was increased, any professorial appointment now would preclude further appointments in the near future. No action taken. The Faculty was promised to weigh the consequences.

1953

10/28

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

FACULTY

LIBRARY

Facilities

PUBLICATIONS (GENERAL)

Publications

The Faculty had made a recommendation to discontinue collection of manuscripts for the archive in view of the practical difficulties involved, and replaced by a collection of reprints. This had been discussed by the Trustees, and referred to the Academic Committee.

Faculty Minutes, ~~IX/26~~ 10/28/53

1953

10/28

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

GENERAL

Finance

BUDGET

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Biographical

Oppenheimer reported he had told trustees spending up with income. Had doubt about suggesting new appointments, etc. ✓ Trustees told him to tell faculty to continue making recommendations. Could spend surplus or capital gains. Director construes this to mean Trustees aware of need for additional income.

IXXX 1953

10/28

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

GENERAL

Finance

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

Academic Organization

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

BEURLING

Biographical

This was a meeting at which the nomination of Beurling by the School of Mathematics was to be discussed. The Director said he had talked to the Trustees about the fact that expenditures matched income, and had gained only the impression that "when the question became urgent, steps would be ~~kkx~~ taken." He said, the Director said, there were two extreme courses that the Faculty could take: either to go ahead with the appointments that seemed desirable without concern for the financial side of the picture, or to refrain from further appointments because of such concern. He recommended some intermediate course of action be taken. (He undoubtedly was talking only of Faculty action here).

General discussion ensued, and the Beurling appointment was discussed particularly. Earle and Panofsky expressed great concern that this appointment might block further appointments in the School of Historical Studies which might come up in the next couple of years. Furthermore, the Beurling appointment would exacerbate the disbalance between the two Schools in favor of mathematics. Panofsky and Earle expressed the fear that the Institute would become an Institute of Mathematics ~~instead~~ and that the School of Historical Studies would gradually die out. The Director commented on this, and in the language of the Minutes: "stressed the unique position that the School of Mathematics occupies in the mathematical community." Morse and von Neumann expressed their high regard for the School of Historical Studies and their wish that it would be further strengthened. Morse point out that the increase in expenditures involved in the Beurling appointment would not be great, and he would favor a cut in the stipend budget in mathematics, rather than see the opportunity missed.

Meritt was assured by these assurances that the School of Mathematics would view sympathetically future appointments

proposed by the School of Historical Studies.

No action was taken on the Beurling appointment, because the Director was going to be away for a month.

Faculty Minutes, 10/28/53

1953

11/4

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

DIRECTOR

Administration

KANTOROWICZ, ERNST

Biographical

MORSE

SELBERG, ATLE

Starting with November 4, 1953, the Director plans to be away for approximately a month. Administrative committee consisting of those mentioned above will be in charge, and one of them will be in the Director's office for an hour, a stipulated hour, each Monday, Wednesday and Friday.

D, Memoranda to Staff and Members

1953

12/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

BEURLING

Biographical

The Director stated the School of Historical Studies was now in the process of selecting from among many promising prospects, a candidate or candidates for permanent appointment and the matter would probably be ready at the next Faculty meeting. Whitney expressed the hope that the proposed appointment of Beurling would not preclude new appointments in the School of Historical Studies. The motion was unanimously adopted by the Faculty. (The motion was to recommend the appointment of Beurling to a professorship).

1954

2/2

GENERAL (COMMON ROOM)

Facilities

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

Oppenheimer asked if each member of the faculty to vote on whether the common room should be restored to its former furnishings or not. He said, "Last autumn when Professor Panofsky and I removed the earlier paintings from the common room and found the Chinese print that seemed good to us and had the color of the walls changed, we thought it best not to put down the rug and the drapes that ^{had} previously been there." The vote was 6 to leave it as it is, 5 indifferent, and 3 to ~~xxxxxx~~ restore in varying degrees.

Professor Woodward said, "...I know from bitter experience in Oxford how dangerous it is to ask the opinions of academic persons on the decoration of Common Rooms. The best rule is to be politely and ~~xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~~ sympathetically indifferent to any complaints. Just leave things as they are, and within two years the protagonists of any change will have become the strongest supporters of the status quo."

1954

3/25

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

GOTTMAN, JEAN

Biographical

SHOE

WACE

LOWINSKY

All of these were extended for another year in the
School of Historical Studies.

1954

3/25

APPOINTMENTS

Academic Personnel

POLICIES

Administration

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

Procedure for considering appointments outside existing fields of study. Ad hoc advisors? Faculty. To be ~~discussed~~ later.

↓ discussed

1954

3/25

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

STIPENDS (DIRECTOR'S FUND)

GENERAL

Academic Activities

Director asked about proper procedure when considering permanent or Faculty appointments in fields where no established tradition or policy exists in the Institute. He asked whether ad hoc advisors would be an improvement, and invited statements or suggestions from the Faculty. Morse said that where entering a new field was being considered, a faculty committee ought to be appointed which could collaborate with the Director. Von Neumann thought that for the purpose of deciding whom to consult, a discussion within the Faculty of the School with which the field has closer relation, would suffice, so that the formation of a committee was not needed. Montgomery stressed the final power of decision, regardless of procedures adopted at the gathering of information and advice, should be reserved for the Faculty.

Faculty Minutes, 3/25/54

195⁴
1956

~~3/25~~ 3/29

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES
BLOCK, HERBERT

Academic Personnel
Academic Organization
Biographical

Block was approved as Professor, March 29, 195⁴, by the Faculty.

Faculty Minutes, 3/29/5⁴

1954

9/30

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

BOHR/ NIELS

Biographical

KENNAN

NEUGEBAUER

The Faculty agreed to extend the five-year appointments of the above-named for another five years.

1954

December

DIRECTOR

Administration

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

The Directorship has changed from ^{being} a member of the Corporation and a member of the Board of Trustees ~~and a member ex-officio of all committees~~ with the right to attend all meetings of the committees of the Trustees to the following:

"The Director shall be a member ex-officio of the Corporation and of all committees of the Trustees. He shall be responsible for communicating to the Trustees views of the faculty on all matters affecting the Institute."

He determines in consultation with the Faculty the admission of members and the employment of staff and "exercises general supervision over the Institute in respect to its academic phases. He shall have authority after consultation with the Faculty and with the approval of the Board or the Executive Committee to make appointments to the Faculty for indefinite terms ~~or~~ or for limited periods."

By-Laws adopted December, 1954

1954

12/17

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF mathematics

Academic Organization

LERAY, JEAN

Biographical

Jean Leray's five-year membership was extended by five years to 1965!

1954

12/17

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

Academic Organization

Woodward informed the Faculty that the School of Historical Studies had sought advice from three distinguished professors emeriti of modern history: Morison, Wallace Notestein, and Bernadotte Schmitt, and on their advice had given up the attempt to fill the vacancy caused by the death of Professor Earle with a scholar active in the field of American History. Now being considered are: Leo Gershoy (New York University), C. L. Rossiter (Cornell) and David Harris Willson (University of Minnesota); in addition, the possibility of selecting a legal historian is being explored. The School hopes to present a nomination at the next Faculty meeting.

1954

12/17

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

THEORETICAL PHYSICS

Academic Activities

PLACZEK

Biographical

Placzek supported by Director and the Institute physicists backed by Bethe, Bohr and Rabi, was opposed by mathematicians as professor. Von Neumann ~~and~~ wrote in opposition.

General question raised: separate school for Theoretical Physics? Nature of appointments, etc. On January 14, 1955, faculty voted professorship down for Placzek 8-6. Cherniss moved, Panofsky seconded.

1954

12/19

Partup -

though Th Py sought to cut out
the own cake didn't succeed -

12/17/54 Sm Fac. voted down Th Py

no proposition for P. Dacyla - when P.D.

had to face Fac - Chemis would Propose

Seconded - Voted down 8-6

1954

12/17

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
MEMBERS

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

YANG
CHARNEY
PLACZEK

Academic Personnel

Academic Organization

Biographical

unanimously

The School of Mathematics agreed/not to recommend a professorial appointment for Professor Charney.

It unanimously agreed to recommend a professorial appointment for Yang.

It disagreed upon professorship for Professor Placzek.

Some of the members of the School were unalterably opposed to Placzek and the nomination could not be considered with ~~out~~ their concurrence. Those working in theoretical physics are firmly convinced the recommendation should be made.

There was a discussion on above.

Professors Bethe, Bohr, and Rabi had written in 1952 in support of a permanent appointment for Placzek. These letters were read. Von Neumann opposed the professorial appointment.

"The discussion, transcending the merits of the individual case, touched upon the ontological difference between 'permanent' and 'professorial' appointments; on the desirability of dividing the School of Mathematics into a section devoted to pure mathematics and another section devoted to theoretical physics; and on the troublesome nature of permanent non-professorial appointments."

1955

1/14

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES

Academic ~~Personnel~~ Organization

MEMBERS

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

Alföldi voted.

Woodward reported the choice of successor to Earle had narrowed down to Professor Samuel E. Thorne and David Harris Willson, with the School favoring Willson.

School of Mathematics got the Faculty to approve an extension of a three-year appointment for Professor Kunihiko.

~~Professor~~ Yang was approved for a Professorship.

The Director brought up Professorship for Placzek. Moved by Cherniss, seconded by Panofsky that Placzek be recommended to the Board of Trustees for Professorship. Defeated by majority of Faculty Minutes, 1/14/55

1955

2/3

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

NOMINATIONS

WOODWARD, SIR LLEWELLYN

Biographical

E. Llewellyn Woodward to The Director, February 3, 1955.

"The Director

"You may care to read this--especially the last paragraph. I am not circulating it because it is just a private letter to me. Anyhow--especially after Davis' letter--so very typical of a man of great industry and no talent or spark in him. I'm sure we aren't going to persuade E. K. ! And though we have no librarian veto we don't want another debate about consensus.

"But the problem will remain. Counting Alföldi--who is classical [?] alright in himself--four out of the seven of us in the School ^{are} non-American by birth and training, and only one of us has any professional interest in the vicissitudes of Political Man since about 1600 a. d.

"I am sure from the point of view of the Institute that this "didn't ought to be," and I know that it is a count ~~for~~ which some outside critics have against us--(I wouldn't mind this if I didn't think such criticism well founded)."

"E. L. W."

"Feb. 3, 1955"

1955

March - November

TRUSTEES

Corporation

FACULTY

Academic Personnel

SALARIES

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

VEBLEN, O.

Biographical

OPPENHEIMER, R.

Note: There were no faculty meetings from March, 1955 to November, 1955. There was an increase in salary for all Institute professors to \$18,000 resulting from action by the Trustees on October 27, 1955. There is no allusion in the minutes to the faculty moving for this increase in salary.

Note: Veblen said at the Trustees' meeting of April 15, 1955 that at the time of the founding of the Institute the \$15,000 maximum faculty salary made it possible to attract

professors from any other institution, but that the increase of twenty percent reflected in today's salaries was not as large as the increase in full professors' salaries, generally. Dr. Oppenheimer stated that to his knowledge there had been only two formal declinations of appointment to the Faculty and that one of these was clearly not for financial reasons.

Fac this personally Mr.

1955

3/8
3/22
11/8

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

KENNAN, GEORGE

Biographical

See these Minutes for reference to above.

Faculty Minutes of above dates.

1955

7/1

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

WILLOUGHBY

Biographical

WOODWARD, SIR LLEWELLYN

E. Llewellyn Woodward to The Director, July 1, 1955.

"The Director.

"The enclosed letter explains itself. I might add that I have talked often to Willoughby about his work. He has made the discovery which most of us make at some time in our lives that when we set out to write one volume we have to write two. I thought that in talking to Mr. W. made out a convincing case for dividing his work into two volumes. The subject is an interesting one. And he is approaching it in the right way. That is to say he is writing not merely a chronological history but an analysis of the future involved in an important international economic and political problem. He is a tremendous worker, and now has his tooth sharpened and his material all collected. I think it would be a pity having helped him so far not to help him to finish the job.

I don't blame him for not realizing [?] before [?] that it was a bigger job than he had reckoned on. Having made, as I say, this same mistake more than once, I am much more inclined to regard it as a sign of merit--or perhaps I should say, of grace! that a man sees himself compelled by the logic of his material to enlarge his plans for dealing with it.

"I have told W. that of course I didn't know whether our funds would run to another year, and that we shouldn't be able to tell him until March."

"E. L. W."

"7.1.55"

1955

11/14

GOLIMAN, HETTY

Biographical

FLEXNER, A.

VEELEN, O.

MOREY, C. R.

SALARIES

Academic Personnel

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Procedures

SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES

Academic Organization

Interview with Professor Hetty Goldman

See Vertical File - INTERVIEWS

1955

11/18

TRUSTEES

Corporation

✓ FACULTY PARTICIPATION

Administration

MITRANY, D.

Biographical

FLEXNER, A.

FRANKFURTER, F.

AYDELOTTE, F.

Interview with Oswald Veblen, 11/18/55

See TRUSTEES - Corporation

1955

11/21

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS

Academic Organization

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Relations W.O.A.I.

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

FLEKNER, A.

Biographical

VON NEUMANN, J.

VEHLEN, O.

ALEXANDER, J.

RIEFER, W.

LEFSCHETZ

Interview with O. Veblen, 11/21/55

See Vertical File - INTERVIEWS

1955

12/1

SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS (7)

Academic Organization

APPOINTMENTS (1, 5)

Academic Personnel

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (2, 3, 5, 9)

GENERAL (6, 7)

Administration

DIRECTOR (3, 6, 7)

FRANKFURTER (1, 8)

Biographical

RIEPLER, (1, 3, 8)

STEWART (3)

EINSTEIN (5, 6)

PLEXNER (5, 6, 7, 8, 9)

VEBLEN (INTERVIEW)

Interview with Professor Veblen, 12/1/55.

Filed in Vertical File under Veblen Interviews.

1955

12/12

POLICIES

Administration

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

VEBLER, O.

Biographical

AYDELOTTE, F.

DOUGLAS, LEWIS

FLEXNER, A.

Interview with Professor Veblen, December 12, 1955.

Filed in Vertical File under 'Interviews.'

Interview with Professor Veblen, 12/12/55.

1955

12/16

ROCKEFELLER

Foundations

ARCHEOLOGY

Academic Activities

STIPENDS

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL

Academic Procedures

FIEXNER, A.

Biographical

MERRITT, B.

AYDELOTTE, F.

Interview with Professor Meritt, 12/16/55.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Professor Meritt, 12/16/55

1955

12/16

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

STIPENDS

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Relations WOI

BUDGET

Finance

POLICIES

Administration

GENERAL

Academic Organization

CHEERNISS, H.

Biographical

Interview with Harold Cherniss, December 16, 1955.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews.

Interview with Harold Cherniss, 12/16/55

1956

1/30

/PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

FLEXNER, A.

MAASS, H.

LEIDESDORF, S.

Academic Personnel

Academic Organization

Biographical

Stewart Interview 1/30/56

1956

1/31

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Organization
Academic Personnel

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

STEWART, W. W.

Biographical

PLEKNER, A.

VEBIEN, O.

RIEFLER, W.

DOUGLAS, LEWIS

OPPENHEIMER, R.

MOE, HENRY ALLEN

AYDELOTTE, F.

Interview with Walter W. Stewart, January 31, 1956.

Filed in Chronological File under Stewart Interviews.

Interview with W. W. Stewart, 1/31/56

1956

2/6

SCHOOL~~X~~ OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

LEAGUE OF NATIONS

Government Relations

✓PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

DIRECTOR

Administration

HOUGHTON

Biographical

STEWART, W. W.

BLEXNER, A.

TOYNBEE

ELIOT

Interview with Walter W. Stewart, February 6, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Interviews, Stewart.

Interview with Walter W. Stewart, 2/6/56

1956

2/10

✓ FACULTY PARTICIPATION

Academic Personnel

GENERAL

Academic Organization

AYDELOTTE, F.

Biographical

FLEXNER, A.

MOREY, C. R.

PANOFSKY

Interview with Professor Panofsky, February 10, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Panofsky Interviews.

Interview/ with Professor Panofsky, February 10, 1956

1956

2/20

DIRECTOR

Administration

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

AYDELOTTE, F.

Biographical

OPPENHEIMER, R.

MAASS, HERBERT H.

Interview with Jane Richardson Mapes, February 20, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Mapes Interviews.

Interview with Jane Richardson Mapes, February 20, 1956

1956

3/26

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Relations WOAI

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

FOUNDERS

Corporation

DEGREES

Academic Procedures

EINSTEIN, A.

Biographical

EISENHART, LUTHER P.

VEBLER, O.

Interview with Luther P. Eisenhart, March 26, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Eisenhart Interviews.

Interview with Luther P. Eisenhart, 3/26/56

1956

4/9

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

WILSON, WOODROW

Biographical

BROGAN

Brogan in a lecture on Wilson as a figure in domestic politics in the United States said it was commonly assumed that Wilson was a professor and university president, was a neophyte in politics. Nothing could be further from the truth, Brogan said; Wilson had spent his life as an academician; first in Georgia, and then in other places, finally in Princeton University. Brogan said that anyone who has gone through and survived the usual routine of academic politics has nothing to learn and nothing to fear from political life in the service of any level of government. He knows it all, and he cannot be frightened or disappointed by any new techniques or phenomena.

Professor Black, History Department, Princeton University, is going to call me when the Brogan speech in text comes in. The statement was far more appogramatically made than as reflected
Speech given by Brogan above.

1956

5/31

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
COMMITTEES (NOMINATING)
ECONOMICS
NATIONAL BUREAU OF ECONOMIC RESEARCH
SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS
SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS
VINER
STEWART
BAMBERGER
RIEFLER
FRANKFURTER
FLEXNER
AYDELOTTE
OPPENHEIMER
MAASS

Academic Personnel

Academic Activities

Foundations

Academic Organization

Biographical

Interview with Walter W. Stewart, May 31, 1956.

Filed in Stewart Interviews in the Vertical File.

Interview with Stewart, 5/31/56

1956

6/6

GENERAL
ECONOMICS
PHILOSOPHY
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY
POLICIES

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
GUGGENHEIM

VINER, J.
FLEXNER, A.
RIEPLER, W. W.
STEWART, WARREN
WARREN, ROBERT
VEBLEN, O.
EINSTEIN, ALBERT
EARLE, EDWARD M.
PROFESSORS

Academic Organization
Academic Activities

Relations WCAI
Administration
Academic Personnel
Foundations
Biographical

Academic Personnel

Interview with Jacob Viner, June 6, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Viner Interviews.

Interview with Viner, 6/6/56

1956

6/15

GENERAL

Academic Organization

ELECTRONIC COMPUTER PROJECT

Academic Activities

FELLOWSHIP

Academic Personnel

APPOINTMENTS

MEMBERS

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

MONTGOMERY, DEAN

Biographical

VEDLEY, C.

LAPOINTE

OPPENHEIMER

KERRAN

Interview with Dean Montgomery, June 15, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Montgomery Interviews.

1956

6/27

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

MEMBERS

MATHEMATICS

Academic Activities

SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS

Academic Organization

DIRECTOR

Administration

WEYL, HERMANN

Biographical

BIRKHOFF, GEORGE

FLEXNER, A.

ALEXANDER, JAMES W.

Interview with James W. Alexander, June 27, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Alexander Interviews.

Interview with Alexander, 6/27/56

1956

7/9

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

NOMINATIONS

HARVARD

Academic Personnel

Administration

Educational Institutions

Neumann says that when Harvard University is faced with the necessity of making an appointment of a full professor from outside the University, a committee of ~~outside~~ qualified scholars in the field is appointed with the duty of examining the nomination made by the School or Department of Harvard. This ad hoc group considers not only the merits of the proposed appointment, but reviews the field to ascertain whether, in their judgment, a more qualified individual exists. They then report (question--to whom). This prevents inbreeding and too great specialization or limited viewpoint; it furnishes a mechanism for stymieing the full action of academic politics and logrolling.

Dinner table conversation July 9, 1956

1956

7/12

DIRECTOR

Administration

POLICIES

COMMITTEES

GIFTS

Finance

GENERAL (TAXES)

Government Relations

BY-LAWS

Corporation

TRUSTEES

FACULTY

Academic Personnel

PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

REPORTS

Academic Procedures

OPPENHEIMER, J.

Biographical

VEBLEN, G.

STRAUS

AYDELSTE

KANTOROWICZ

Interview with Dr. Oppenheimer, July 12, 1956.
Filed Vertical under Oppenheimer Interviews.

1956

7/16

SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES
SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS
PROFESSORS
MEMBERS
FACULTY

Academic Organization

Academic Personnel

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Activities

ECONOMICS

Educational institutions

HARVARD

Facilities

GEST ORIENTAL LIBRARY

Relations WOI

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Publications

GENERAL

Biographical

OPPENHEIMER

RIEFLER

FERGUSON

WARREN

TOYNBEE

MAYER

ELIOT

GODEL

PLACZEK

EARLE

KENNAN

DOUGLAS

DYSON

STRAUSS

STEWART

FRANKL

VINER

ALEXANDER

Interview with Robert Oppenheimer, July 16, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Oppenheimer Interviews.

1956

9/21

DIRECTOR

Corporation

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

SWARTHMORE

Educational Institutions

AYDELOTTE, F.

Biographical

MAASS, H. H.

LEIDESDORF

FLEXNER, A.

HARDIN, J. R.

XXXX STEWART, W. W.

Interview with Mr. Aydelotte, September 21, 1956.

Filed in Vertical File under Aydelotte Interviews.

Interview with F. A., Sept. 21, 1956

1956

9/25

ECONOMICS (P. 1, 4, 5, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16)	Academic Activities
DIRECTOR (P. 6)	Administration
SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES (P. 6, 7)	Academic Organization
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY (P. 7, 8, 11)	Relations WOAI
✓PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (P. 9, 13)	Academic Personnel
POLICIES (P. 12)	Administration
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (P. 6, 7, 15, 16)	Facilities
ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION (P. 16, 18)	Foundations
STEWART, W. W. (P. 1, 5, 13, 14)	Biographical
FRANKFURTER (P. 2, 5, 9, 17)	
CLAY (P. 4)	
RIEFLER (P. 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 13, 14, 15)	
WOLMAN (P. 4, 17)	
VINER (P. 5, 8)	
AYDELOTTE (P. 6)	
VEBIEN (P. 1, 16)	
STRAUS (P. 7)	
PANOFSKY (P. 7)	
SCHROEDINGER (P. 7, 8)	
OPPENHEIMER (P. 9, 17)	
WARREN (P. 10, 11, 16)	
BUCHANAN, NORMAN (P. 11)	
FEIS (P. 13)	

Interview with Mr. Stewart, September 25, 1956.
Filed in Vertical File under Stewart Interviews.

1956

9/28

SALARIES (P. 2)

Academic Activities

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

Relations WOA

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (P. 4, 5)

TRUSTEES

EARLE, (P. 1)

Biographical

FLIXNER (P. 2)

VEBLEN (P. 2, 4, 5)

HAASS (P. 2, 5)

MERRITT (P. 3)

MOREY (P. 5)

AYDELOTTE (P. 5)

WERD (P. 5)

Dinner table conversation with Miss Goldman, 9/28/56
Filed in Vertical File under Goldman Interviews.

1956

10/24

DIRECTOR
 JOHNS HOPKINS
 BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS
 GEST ORIENTAL LIBRARY
 ✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION
 INSTITUTE HISTORY
 PRINCETON UNIVERSITY
 FLEXNER, A.
 LEIDESDORF
 BLUESTONE
 MAASS
 VEBLEN
 HARDIN
 VON NEUMANN
 ALEXANDER
 DODDS
 MOREY
 AYDELOTTE
 WARREN
 STEWART

Administration
 Educational Institutions
 Facilities

Academic Personnel
 Institute History
 Relations WOAI
 Biographical

Interview with Abraham Flexner, 10/24, 1956
 Filed in Vertical File under Flexner Interviews.

Flexner Interview, 10/24/56

1956

11/29 ✕

ECONOMICS

Academic Activities

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

DIRECTOR

Administration

STEWART, W. W.

Biographical

Memo (W. W. Stewart) on Work of Economists--with attached documentation not for attribution.

It is filed in the Vertical File under E for Economics and Politics.

W. W. S.

1957

1/23

AYDELOTTE, F.

Biographical

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

PANOPSEY (another exc. for last
paragraph)

Biographical

CHERNISS

Faculty resolution Aydelotte's death.

Filed with "A" for Aydelotte

1957

3/5

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION

Academic Personnel

DUKAS

Biographical

EINSTEIN AND MRS. EINSTEIN

FLEXNER, A.

MAYER, W.

WEYL, H.

HILB

Interview with Miss Dukas, March 5, 1957.

Filed in Vertical File under Dukas Interviews.

1957

3/13

ECONOMICS (2, 6, 7)	Academic Activities
SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS (1, 2)	Academic Organization
SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES (4, 6)	Relations WOAIX
SCHOOL OF HISTORICAL STUDIES (6)	
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY (3, 4, 5, 6, 7)	Relations WOAIX
✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (5)	Academic Personnel
POLICIES (3, 5, 6)	Administration
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (SITE) (6)	Facilities
WOODWARD (7)	Biographical
FLEXNER IX (1, 4, 5, 7)	
FRANKFURTER (1)	
MITRANY (1)	
MARSCHAK (1)	
RIEFLER (1, 2)	
VINER (2, 7)	
EARLE (2, 3, 6)	
JONES, THOMAS (3)	
WARREN (3)	
STEWART (3)	
AYDELOTTE (5)	
OPPENHEIMER (6)	
BAILEY (8)	

Interview with Sir Llewellyn Woodward, March 13, 1957.
Filed in Vertical File under Woodward Interviews.

1957

6/6

✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (1)	Academic Personnel
ADMINISTRATION <u>POLICIES</u> (1)	Administration
SCHOOL OF ECONOMICS AND POLITICS (1&2)	Academic Organization
ECONOMICS (1, 2)	Academic Activities
SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS (1)	Academic Organization
INSTITUTE HISTORY (2)	Institute History
FLEXNER (1)	Biographical
CLAY, HENRY (2)	
LEIDESDORF (2)	
STEWART, WALTER W. (1, 2, 3)	

Interview with Walter W. Stewart, June 6, 1957.

Filed in Vertical File under Stewart interviews.

1957

6/27

FOUNDERS (1, 4, 5)
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (1)
✓ PARTICIPATION IN ADMINISTRATION (2, 3)
APPOINTMENTS (4, 5, 6)
ECONOMICS (4)
ARCHAEOLOGY (4)
GENERAL (4)
SCHOOL OF HUMANISTIC STUDIES (4, 6)
SCHOOL OF MATHEMATICS (6)
GOLDMAN (1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6)
AYDELOTTE (1, 3, 4)
BOUGHTON (1)
OPPENHEIMER (2)
VEBLEN (3, 6)
MORSE (3)
FLEXNER (4, 5, 6)
THOMPSON (4)
BAMBERGER, LOUIS (5)
BAMBERGER, LAVINIA (5)
MERRITT (6)
PANOPSKY (6)
DE TOLNAY (6)
EINSTEIN (1, 2, 3, 6)

Corporation
Facilities
Academic Personnel

Academic Activities

Finance
Academic Organization

Biographical

Interview with Betty Goldman, June 27, 1957.
Filed in Vertical File under Goldman Interviews.